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Area of Archaeological interest- Where to dig


For the semester long study, the first of its kind on the actual Brown University campus, the class ARCH1900 the archeology of college hill should focus its efforts on uncovering the exact location of the first President's House built in 1770. The site located on what is called the quiet green and stands approximately one hundred and fifty feet on a diagonal away from the northwest corner of University Hall. 


The land on which University Hall and the site of the old President's House is one was purchased in  1770 and the cornerstone for the “college edifice” was laid by Mr. John Brown on 14, May 1770
The President’s House was also built this year although the date of its construction is not known. The President’s House remained in this location until 1840 until it was moved down college hill to College Street (three houses down from Benefit Street) where stood until it was demolished by the Rhode Island School of Design in order to build a new school building A new President’s House was built access Prospect Street from the original location where the John Hay library now stands. From the first and only depiction of the house, and the first depiction of the University which is a copper plate engraving called “A S.W. View of the COLLEGE in Providence together with the PRESIDENT'S HOUSE & GARDENS” (Drawn by a student

David Leonard class of 1792, and engraved by Boston engraver Samuel Hill)
 we know that the house was situated so that the front of the building and the main entrance was to the South and towards University Hall. The foundation as depicted in “A S.W. View of the COLLEGE in Providence together with the PRESIDENT'S HOUSE & GARDENS” appears to be rather tall to compensate for the west end of the house leading downhill. For archeological study, the size of this foundation would be worth noting because when the house was moved its base might have been hard to remove therefore it was simply covered instead. We can also tell by the engraving that basement of the building also had a door on its West end which was an entrance to the cellar. This gap on the foundation where the door might have been could be noted if the foundation was discovered, under the surface. The front or South side of the foundation is depicted as being made of large square stone as opposed to the West end which appears smooth and was possibly plastered. The doorway had in front of it, a large set of stone steps which could possibly remain. The house was two stories tall and had an attic. It had five windows on the second floor and four on first floor with the door in the middle. It was a traditional colonial rectangular building with clapboard siding and a shingled roof, it also had a privy set a decently far bit away from the house and a fenced back yard. With another lithograph called “Brown University, Providence, R.I." (Lithograph after James Kidder, ca. 1828-31) we are gifted with a view of the University from the North. Included in the depiction is the back of the President’s House, with an apparent independently roofed addition onto the back of it. The house seems a lot closer to Prospect Street that in the earliest rendition, but is still slightly Northwest of University Hall. This lithograph is from the 1830s right before the house was moved away but before it was moved this particular President’s House served as the residence for four of the University’s presidents: Reverend James Manning (for whom it was built for), Reverend Jonathan Maxcy, Reverend Asa Messer, and Reverend Francis Wayland who was the president during the transition period during which the old house was moved and the new one constructed in 1840. It would be very interesting if artifacts were found, to put a timescale to the different objects found and view how personal possessions could have changed over time.


The location of the President’s House is marked in Plats of Brown University: 1770-1938 as being within 200 feet directly Northwest of University Hall. The plans drawn up are very informative as they depict the college as it was laid out in past centuries but still marks down the exact location of the current street layout, this provides the reader with a good understanding of where the locations of buildings that no longer exist based off of where the streets are now. According to this plan of the college holdings, the president’s house was square with prospect street and had a well close to the house to the southeast. According to the scale of this plan, the house was about fifty feet in length and 35 feet in width and stood approximately 140 feet off of the northwest corner of University Hall. Currently the land where the house once stood is crossed by a cement pathway that leads from manning hall though a gate which has a plaque on it mentioning that the first presidents house stood “somewhere near here.” It stands in to the south of the Carrie Tower in front of Manning Hall and has a few trees on it. It is rather clear and would probably be good spot to dig because there are not any utilities buried underneath it and it is also an area that does not get a lot of foot traffic. 


What could be expected to be uncovered during an archaeological study of the site would be (unless it was dismantled) a foundation of the house, along with the foundations of the houses two chimney's toward its center. Other finds could include the deposition of materials around the houses perimeter. Ideally, personal item could be found, but the things most likely to have survived will be glass and other ceramics such as porcelain. If the foundation was simply covered over which was common practice in the 18h an 19th centuries, the fill used to cover the foundation could have been refuse from elsewhere and therefore it could contain other artifacts from 18th and 19th century Providence. The broader significance of this study would be a broader understanding of the lives which these first few Presidents of the University led. Were they lavish? Or were they quainter? We could also get a broader understanding of what life was like in the very early days of the University through artifacts that might teach us something we might not already know. Along with the discovery of artifacts and learning a bit more about the early presidents of Brown, the exact location of where the house once stood could be definitively marked. A simple point on a map depicting the location of it would be nice as it appears to be a very elusive part of Brown’s history since it was removed so long ago. 


If the foundations of the president’s house were to be discovered I believe that the university would take great interest in our research which would be the first true “Archaeology of College Hill” experience and the first archaeological dig of its kind on the Brown University campus possibly ever. 
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